

BYLAWS

APPROVED BY SO. 14 LWIB 3.13.2018

ARTICLE I NAME/SERVICE AREA/OFFICE LOCATION/DEFINITIONS/AUTHORITY

SECTION 1. NAME

The name of this organization shall be the Southern 14 Workforce Investment Board, Inc. (hereafter referred to as "the Board").

SECTION 2. SERVICE AREA

The Board shall serve the residents of Alexander, Edwards, Gallatin, Hamilton, Hardin, Johnson, Massac, Pope, Pulaski, Saline, Union, Wabash, Wayne and White Counties, hereinafter referred to as Workforce Innovation Area # 26.

SECTION 3. OFFICE LOCATION

The official office location and mailing address shall be: 304 East Robinson Street, PO Box 186, Carmi, IL 62821

SECTION 4. AUTHORITY

The Board shall act as the Workforce Innovation Board ("WIB") for local Workforce Innovation Area 26. The Board shall conduct and engage in activities as set forth in the federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (hereinafter referred to as "WIOA"), applicable federal regulations, state, and local law.

SECTION 5. DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of these bylaws and consistent with WIOA, "Chief Elected Officials or Chief Local Elected Officials (CEOs)" are defined as the County Board Chairs of Alexander, Edwards, Gallatin, Hamilton, Hardin, Johnson, Massac, Pope, Pulaski, Saline, Union, Wabash, Wayne and White Counties.

ARTICLE II VISION/PURPOSE/FUNCTION

SECTION 1. VISION

The vision for the Board is to serve as a strategic leader and convener of local workforce system stakeholders. The Board partners with employers and the workforce system to develop policies and investments that support workforce system strategies that support regional economies, the development of effective approaches including local and regional sector partnerships and career pathways, and high-quality, customer-centered service delivery and service delivery approaches.

SECTION 2. PURPOSE

The purpose of the Board is to:

- Provide strategic and operational oversight in collaboration with the required and additional
 partners and workforce stakeholders to help develop a comprehensive and high-quality
 workforce system in the local area and larger planning region;
- Assist in the achievement of the State's strategic and operational vision and goals as outlined in the Unified State Plan; and
- Maximize and continue to improve the quality of services, customer satisfaction, and effectiveness of the services provided.

SECTION 3. FUNCTION

In partnership with the CEO(s), the Board sets policy for the local workforce system consistent with State policies. The functions of the Board are described in WIOA Sec. 107(d) and are as follows:

- A. Develop and submit a 4-year local plan for the local area, in partnership with the CEO(s) and consistent with Section 108 of WIOA;
- B. Develop and submit a regional plan in collaboration with other local areas in the designed region. The local plan must be submitted as a part of the regional plan;
- C. Conduct workforce research and regional labor market analysis as defined in section 107(d)(2) of WIOA;
- D. Convene local workforce system stakeholders to assist in the development of the local plan under Section 108 and in identifying non-federal expertise and resources to leverage support for workforce activities:
- E. Lead efforts to engage with a diverse range of employers and other entities in the region in order to promote business representation on the Board, develop effective linkages with employers in the region, ensure that workforce investment activities meet the needs of employers, and develop and implement proven or promising strategies for meeting the employment and skill needs of workers and employers;
- F. With representatives of secondary and post-secondary education programs, lead efforts to develop and implement career pathways within the local area by aligning the employment, training, education, and supportive services that are needed by adults and youth, particularly individuals with barriers to employment;

- G. Lead efforts in the local area to identify and promote proven and promising strategies and initiatives for meeting the needs of employers, workers and jobseekers, and identify and disseminate information on proven and promising practices carried out in other local areas for meeting such needs;
- H. Develop strategies for using technology to maximize the accessibility and effectiveness of the local workforce system for employers, and workers and jobseekers consistent with Section 107(d)(7) of WIOA;
- I. In partnership with the chief elected official for the local area, conduct oversight of: youth workforce investment activities authorized under WIOA Sec. 129(c), adult and dislocated worker employment and training activities under WIOA Secs. 134 (c) and (d); and entire one-stop delivery system in the local area; ensure the appropriate use and management of the funds provided under WIOA Subtitle B for the youth, adult, and dislocated worker activities and one-stop delivery system in the local area; and ensure the appropriate use management, and investment of funds to maximize performance outcomes under WIOA Sec. 116;
- J. Negotiate and reach agreement on local performance measures with the CEO and the Governor;
- K. Negotiate with CEO and required partners on the methods for funding the infrastructure costs of one-stop centers in the local area in accordance with WIOA or must notify the Governor if they fail to reach agreement at the local level and will use a State infrastructure funding mechanism;
- L. Select providers of youth workforce investment activities, training services, career services, and one-stop operators in the local area as specified in WIOA, and where appropriate terminate such providers in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200;
- M. In accordance with WIOA Sec. 107(d)(10)(E) work with the State to ensure there are sufficient numbers and types of providers of career services and training services serving the local area and providing the services in a manner that maximizes consumer choice, as well as providing opportunities that lead to competitive integrated employment for individuals with disabilities;
- N. Coordinate activities with education and training providers in the local area, including reviewing applications to provide adult education and literacy activities under Title II for the local area to determine whether such applications are consistent with the local plan, making recommendations to the eligible agency to promote alignment with such plan, and replicating and implementing cooperative agreements to enhance the provision of services to individuals with disabilities and other individuals;
- O. Develop a budget for the activities of the Board, with approval of the CEO and consistent with the local plan and the duties of the Board;
- P. Assess, on an annual basis, the physical and programmatic accessibility of all one- stop centers in the local area, in accordance with WIOA Sec. 188, if applicable, and applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.); and
- Q. Certification of one-stop centers in accordance with WIOA.

ARTICLE III MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1. COMPOSITION

Board membership shall be composed of representatives required under WIOA and by policies established by the State of Illinois.

<u>Live or Work Policy</u> - Members may reside outside of the local area but must work within the boundaries of the local area, or be responsible for workNet Centers partner programs within the area.

The Board members shall be appointed by the CEO(s) for Workforce Innovation Area # 26 in accordance with the following categories:

- A. **Business Sector** Members of this category shall constitute a majority of the membership of the Board. Members must be owners of businesses, chief executives or chief operating officers or other business executives or employers with optimum policy making or hiring authority. At least two business members must meet the requirements of a small business as defined by the Small Business Administration.
- B. Workforce Sector Members of this category shall constitute at least twenty percent (20%) of the membership. The members shall include at least two (2) representatives of labor organizations and one (1) representative of registered apprenticeship programs (if they exist in the area); may include representatives from community-based organizations that have demonstrated experience and expertise addressing the employment needs of individuals with barriers to employment, including organizations that serve veterans or that provide or support competitive integrated employment for individuals with disabilities; and may include representatives of organizations that have demonstrated experience and expertise in addressing the employment, training, or education needs of eligible youth, including representatives of organizations that serve out-of-school youth.
- C. **Education and Training Sector** Local educational program representatives which shall include an eligible provider of adult education and literacy activities, and a representative of institutions of higher education providing workforce investment activities (including community colleges). The members may include entities administering education and training activities that represent local education agencies and community-based organizations with demonstrated expertise addressing the education or training needs of individuals with barriers to employment. No single member of a local board shall serve as a representative of the adult education and literacy activities under Title II and the institution of higher education providing workforce investment activities.
- D. Governmental and Economic and Community Development Sector Entities shall include economic and community development entities, Wagner-Peyser, Title I of the Rehabilitation Services Act of 1973. Members in this category may include a representative that administers local programs providing transportation, housing and public assistance in the local area or a representative of philanthropic organizations serving the local area.
- E. **Other Sector** May include such other individuals or representatives of entities as the CEO(s) may determine to be appropriate.

(5)

SECTION 2. SELECTION/NOMINATION

- A. The CEO(s) shall make appointments and reappointments in accordance with the Chief Elected Official Consortium Agreement for Area #26 and criteria established by the State of Illinois.
- B. All representatives of organizations, agencies or other entities serving on the local board shall be individuals with optimum policy making authority within the organizations, agencies or entities they represent, and should represent the diverse geographic areas within the local area.
- C. Business representatives are to be from local businesses and are appointed from among individuals nominated by local business organizations and business trade associations.
- D. Labor representatives are to be nominated by local labor federations or (for a local area in which no employees are represented by such organizations) by other representatives of employees, such as employee organizations and/or the State AFL-CIO.
- E. Representatives of local educational entities providing adult education and literacy activities and institutions of higher education (including representatives of community colleges) are to be nominated by each respective group if there are multiple providers in the local area.
- F. Individuals may nominate themselves if they meet the criteria to nominate and represent the particular business, organization, or program for which they are being nominated.

SECTION 3. TERM LIMITATIONS

Appointments to this board shall be made in accordance with the Chief Elected Official Consortium Agreement. Appointments and reappointments will occur October 1 of each year. Each term of appointment will be three (3) years. Board members shall serve staggered terms. One-third of the board is to be reappointed or replaced annually. Initial terms will be for one, two, or three-year terms to maintain equal numbers of Board members up for reappointment each year.

Thereafter all appointment and reappointment terms will be for three years.

Nominees are considered board members with full voting rights on the date the CEO Consortium Chair signs and dates the board composition summary form to submit to the state.

Board members will serve until their term of office expires; or their status under which they were appointed changes; or a majority of the CEO(s) agree to revoke their appointments; or the member becomes incapacitated or otherwise unable to complete their term of office; or the member resigns.

When possible, members shall serve until their successors are appointed.

SECTION 4. VACANCIES

Staff to the board shall notify the CEO(s) of a board member vacancy within ninety (90) days of the vacancy in order to ensure a prompt appointment to the vacancy.

Nominations for filling vacancies shall be made in the same manner as was made for the resigning member. Upon appointment, the member shall serve the unexpired term of the member whose vacancy he/she is filling.

SECTION 5. PROXY/ALTERNATE DESIGNEE

Members must be present at meetings to cast a vote and may not vote by proxy/designee.

SECTION 6. COMPENSATION/REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES

No member of the Board shall receive compensation for his/her services on the Board. However, Board members may be reimbursed for mileage to and from Board and committee meetings if their employer does not provide mileage reimbursement. Mileage reimbursement will be made at the current federal rate. Per Diem may also be paid to members attending board and committee meetings if food is not provided at such meeting.

SECTION 7. TERMINATION/REMOVAL

- A. Any member may resign from the Board upon written request to the Board Chairperson(s) and the respective CEO. If a member resigns prior to the expiration date of his/her term in office, the vacancy shall be filled by the CEO who appointed the resigning member.
- B. Board member appointments may be revoked by the appointing CEO or by a request from the appointing CEO for a vote of the CEOs and the concurrence of at least 50% (7 votes plus CEO Consortium Chair approval) members of the Consortium of CEOs.
- C. Board membership requirements include regular attendance at meetings of the Board and assigned committees. The Executive Committee will review the reasons for the absences and may make a recommendation as to what actions, if any, should be taken.
- D. Should a Board member cease to represent the category to which he/she was appointed to fill on the Board through change in status, or otherwise become disabled, ill or unable to perform his/her duties on the Board, he/she shall be removed upon recommendation of the Executive Committee to the CEOs.
- E. A member may be removed for cause by a majority of members present at an official meeting upon recommendation of the Executive Committee and in conjunction with the CEO(s).

SECTION 8. OTHER CONDITIONS

A. Former employees of the agency may not serve on the Board of Directors until a period of 18 months has passed. Former employees who have been involuntarily terminated are prohibited from serving on the board.

ARTICLE IV BOARD OFFICERS

Board members shall nominate a slate of officers for the Board. The officers shall consist of Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary/Treasurer. The slate of officers shall be selected based upon a majority vote of the quorum present at the regular meeting in June each year for duration of a two (2) year term. The elected officers shall take office at the conclusion of the June meeting. [The slate of officers shall not include more than one representative from the same county.] Officers of the Board shall be members with at least three years of So. 14 LWIB experience. The Board Chairperson(s) and Vice Chairperson(s) must be nominated from among the Board's business representatives.

SECTION 1. CHAIRPERSON(S)

The Chairperson -

- Shall preside at all Board meetings;
- Shall preside at all Executive Committee meetings;
- Shall establish agendas for each Board and Executive Committee meeting;
- Shall sign, on behalf of the Board, all necessary legal documents;
- Shall establish, at the direction of the members, such ad hoc committees as the Board deems necessary to carry out its responsibilities;
- Shall appoint, all members of the standing committees and ad hoc committees;
- Shall be the official representative of the Board, as required;
- May call special meetings of the Board;
- Shall present the Annual Report to the Board; and
- Shall be an advisory member of all committees.

SECTION 2. VICE CHAIRPERSON(S)

• Shall assume all duties and responsibilities of the Chairperson in the Chairperson's absence or disability.

SECTION 3. SECRETARY/TREASURER

• Shall perform those functions common to that office under the direction of the Chairperson.

SECTION 4. REMOVAL

Any officer may be removed by the majority vote of the quorum present at a regular meeting whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Board may be served thereby. Grounds for removal shall include, but not be limited to, conduct involving moral turpitude.

ARTICLE V COMMITTEES

The Board's Chairperson(s) shall have the power to create standing and ad hoc committees and to assign committee chairs and members. Committees shall meet at the call of the committee chair as necessary. Meetings shall be conducted in the same manner and formality as regular Board meetings following Robert's Rules of Order and the Illinois Open Meetings Act.

All Committees, except the Executive, are advisory and will make recommendations to the full Board.

The responsibilities of each of the committees are outlined in **Addendum A** to these bylaws.

SECTION 1. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board shall have an Executive Committee consisting of the Board Officers and the Standing Committee Chairs.

The Executive Committee is authorized to act on behalf of the full Board in the event of an urgent matter that requires action prior to the next scheduled Board meeting.

Elected officers of the board may serve as committee chairs, but they have only one vote on the Executive Committee.

Decisions of the Executive Committee will be ratified by the Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting.

SECTION 2. STANDING COMMITTEES

The standing committees of the Board shall consist of: Executive Committee, Personnel Committee, Finance Committee, One-Stop Operations Committee, Youth Committee, Individuals with Disabilities Committee, Oversight Committee, Employer Engagement Committee, the Policy and Planning Committee.

The Board Chairperson(s) shall select committee chairs from among the Board's membership. The committee chairs shall come from the business sector whenever possible and feasible.

The standing committees may include individuals appointed by the Board who are not members and who the Board has determined have demonstrated experience and expertise by contributing to the field of workforce development, human resources, training and development, or a core program function; or the Board recognizes for valuable contributions in education or workforce development related fields. Non-Board members will serve on a committee with the same voting rights as board members. Non-board committee members will be approved by the Executive Committee.

At least 50% of each of the standing committee members must be Board members.

To ensure Board members actively participate in board functions, each member will actively serve on a committee. The Executive Committee will survey the membership as to their interest and appoint members to the committees.

SECTION 3. AD HOC COMMITTEES

The Board may have ad hoc committees, as necessary, and as determined by the Board Chairperson(s). Chairpersons of ad hoc committees shall not be voting members of the Executive Committee.

ARTICLE VI MEETING PROCEDURES

SECTION 1. PROCEDURES

- a. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at a place or places to be determined by the members, at such times and as often as they may deem necessary. Board meetings shall be held quarterly (March, June, September, and December).
- b. Committee meetings shall be conducted in the same manner and with the same formality as regular Board meetings. Committee meetings shall be held on an as-needed basis.
 b1. Unless specifically prohibited by the articles of incorporation or these bylaws, members may participate in and act at any such committee meeting through the use of a conference telephone or other communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can communicate with each other. Participation in such committee meeting shall constitute attendance and presence in person at the meeting of the person or persons so participating.
- c. When parliamentary procedures are not covered by these bylaws, Robert's Rules of Order, Revised, shall prevail.
- d. All Board and related meetings such as committee meetings shall be subject to the Sunshine provisions under WIOA and the Illinois Open Meetings Act. The Board shall conduct its meetings according to the provisions of these current laws and any and all subsequent amendments.
- e. Minutes of the Board, Standing Committees, and Ad Hoc Committees shall be kept of all meetings and shall be available for anyone who requests to see them, and shall be reviewed and approved at the next Board or Committee meeting as appropriate.
- f. Board committees shall meet at the call of the Standing or Ad Hoc Committee Chairperson.
- g. Special meetings of members may be called at any time by the Chairperson(s) or by a petition signed by not less than 25% of the membership of the Board setting forth the reason for calling such a meeting.
- h. Board staff shall send written notice of each meeting to Board members following the Illinois Open Meetings Act requirements. Members shall be afforded a minimum of five (5) calendar days' notice prior to meetings. An agenda, minutes from previous meetings and supporting materials will be provided to each member with the notice.
- i. The public shall be informed of meetings through notice which shall state the purpose of the meeting, the time and the place(s). Special meeting notices shall state the purpose of the meeting and whether it has been called by the Chairperson(s) or by petition.
- j. Participation in meetings shall be limited to the voting members of the Board and the CEO(s) with the following exceptions:
 - Committee meetings, in which it is mandated by law that members be both Board members and non-members.
 - Regularly scheduled agenda items that call for reports or participation by non-members.

- At the discretion of the Chairperson(s) and with the consent of the Board, comment or other participation by non-members which is relevant or material to the matter under consideration before the group.
- There shall be a Public Comments item regularly scheduled at all meetings at which the Chairperson(s) may recognize members of the public and non-voting Board members.
- k. In matters of routine business, the chair may assume general (unanimous) consent unless or until someone objects. In those cases, a regular vote will be required.

SECTION 2. QUORUM

The Board or its committees shall conduct no official business in the absence of a quorum. A quorum of the full board and the Executive Committee shall consist of 40% of the voting members. A quorum of the standing committees or ad hoc committees shall be 40% of voting members of standing committees or ad hoc committees. In lieu of a quorum, the Executive Committee can conduct the business of the Board.

SECTION 3. TECHNOLOGY

The Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/2.01) as amended requires that all public meetings be held at specified times and places which are convenient and open to the public.

It also requires that a quorum of members of a public body must be physically present at the location of an open meeting. According to the Act as amended, however, an open meeting of a public body that is a local workforce innovation area with jurisdiction over a specific geographic area of more than 4,500 square miles is held simultaneously at one of its offices, and one or more other locations in a public building, which may include other of its offices through an interactive video conference, and the public body provides public notice and public access as required under the Act for all locations, then members physically present in those locations all count towards determining a quorum.

Per 5 ILCS 102/7(d), the attendance by means other than physical presence shall not apply to closed meetings of local workforce innovation areas with jurisdiction over a specific geographic area of more than 4,500 square miles. Local workforce innovation areas with jurisdiction over a specific geographic area of more than 4,500 square miles, however, may permit members to attend meetings by other means only in accordance with and to the extent allowed by specific procedural rules adopted by the body.

"Public building" means any building or portion thereof owned or leased by any public body.

"Other means" means by video or audio conference.

The rules for the Board on procedures regarding meetings via electronic means are included in **Addendum B**.

SECTION 4. VOTING RIGHTS - ABSENTEE VOTING

Each member shall be entitled to one (1) vote on each matter submitted to a vote of the members unless a conflict of interest arises. Meetings include both in-person and telephonic assemblages. Members must be present at meetings to cast a vote.

SECTION 5. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

When an issue presents a possible conflict of interest for a member, that member shall disclose the potential conflict of interest and shall abstain from voting on the matter for which a potential conflict of interest exists. A conflict of interest is any matter that has a direct bearing on services to be provided by the member or any organization such member directly represents, or any matter which would provide direct financial benefit to the member of the immediate family of the member or any organization they represents. When such a conflict of interest exits, either real or apparent, the Board member shall not make a motion, second a motion, and rate any proposal or vote on the selection of bidders. The Chair shall rule on the application of the Code of Conduct.

Immediate family members are defined as: father, mother, brother, sister, son, daughter, spouse, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, stepparent, stepchild, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law, grandparent, step-grandparent, grandchild, step-grandchild, domestic partner.

ARTICLE VII INDEMNIFICATION

SECTION 1.

The Board shall indemnify any Board member, staff person, officer, or former Board member, staff person, or officer for expenses actually and reasonably incurred by him/her in connection with the defense of any action, suit or proceeding, civil or criminal, in which he/she is made a party by reason of being or having been a Board member, staff person, or officer, except in relation to matters in which he/she was adjudged, in the action, suit or proceeding, to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his/her Board duties.

SECTION 2.

The right to indemnification under this Article is only available to the extent that the power to indemnify is lawful and to the extent that the person to be indemnified is lawful and to the extent that the person to be indemnified is not insured or otherwise indemnified.

SECTION 3.

The Board shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance sufficient to meet this Article's indemnification requirements.

ARTICLE VIII GENERAL

SECTION 1. RIGHT OF POLICY

Nothing in these bylaws shall be construed to take precedence over Federal, State, or local laws or regulations or to constrain the rights or obligations of the CEOs.

SECTION 2. ENACTMENT PROVISION

These bylaws shall become effective after approval by a two-thirds majority vote of members present at a regular meeting after due notice to Board members. Said notice shall be made no less than five (5) days prior to the meeting at which these bylaws are enacted.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT

These bylaws may be amended at any regular or special meeting of the Board by an affirmative vote of two-thirds majority vote of members present at a regular meeting. Notice must be given to Board members specifying or summarizing the proposed changes. Such notice shall be made no less than five (5) days prior to voting.

SECTION 4. TERMINATION OF BOARD

The Board shall remain in existence until the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act expires or is repealed by Congress; it is dissolved for cause by the Governor of the State of Illinois; or if the Workforce Innovation Area is re-designated by the Governor of the State of Illinois.

SECTION 5. CONTRACTS

The Board may authorize, when appropriate, any officer, member or staff, in addition to the officers so authorized by these bylaws, to enter into any contract in the name of and on behalf of the Board. Such authority will be limited to specific instances.

SECTION 6. BOOKS AND RECORDS

The Board shall keep correct minutes of the proceedings of the Board and its Standing Committees, which shall include but are not limited to:

- the date, time and place of the meeting;
- the members of the public body recorded as either present or absent; and
- a summary of discussion on all matters proposed, deliberated, or decided, and a record of any votes taken.

The minutes along with a record giving the name and address of all members and officers of the Board entitled to vote shall be kept in the Administrative Entities' office. Board attendance records will be kept and reviewed by the CEO(s) on a regular basis.

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATES

These bylaws and any amendments thereto shall become effective immediately upon adoption, and shall remain in continuous effect from that date until otherwise amended.

Adopted on the March 08, 2016. Revisions: [Revision Number]

Revised on the [Enter Date].

ADDENDUM A EXECUTIVE AND STANDING COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES

The **Executive Committee** is composed of the Board Officers and Board Committee Chairs.

The Executive Committee's responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

- a. Serve as liaison to elected officials;
- b. Link with other community boards;
- c. Coordinate agendas of other committees;
- d. Develop a committee/board dispute resolution policy;
- e. Review recommendations from committees to ensure they are in accordance with federal, state, and local criteria in order to make recommendations to the Board;
- f. Review and revise bylaws periodically;
- g. Oversee the development of the four-year local plan, review to assure alignment of Core Partner Programs, and recommend modifications as needed;
- h. Determine local labor market needs;
- i. Propose new initiatives to meet local needs;
- j. Recommend an annual Board budget;
- k. Explore new funding streams and options, include fee-for-service options; and
- 1. Responsible for reviewing one-stop operator proposals and recommending their choice to the full board.

The **Personnel Committee** responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

- a. Review personnel policies, including incentive and bonus plans, pay and classification studies for staff.
- b. May provide interview panelists for new position hires.

The **Finance Committee** responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

a. Oversees the development of the budget, tracks accountability for funds, and reviews major grants. The Finance Committee may perform the responsibilities described for Accountability and Performance above. If not covered by the Executive Committee, they may make recommendations on the division of funds between workNet Centers/core services, intensive services and training, including individual training accounts.

One-Stop Operations Committee

a. Makes recommendations regarding the number of workNet Centers, budget appropriations, coordinates the negotiation and approval of workNet Centers agreements, agrees to workNet Centers partners not mentioned in the legislation, reviews workNet Centers performance including customer satisfaction, and other issues related to workNet Centers implementation.

Youth Committee

a. Provides leadership for the development of services and programs which benefit all youth and contribute to a comprehensive workforce development system for Illinois. The committee will review those parts of the Local Plan which address youth services and make recommendations on the funds to be devoted to year round activities. The committee is responsible for coordinating youth services and recommending Service Providers to the Board. It provides oversight of youth programs.

Individuals with Disabilities Committee

The purpose of the committee is to prepare findings, conclusions and recommendations for the Secretary of Labor on:

- Ways to increase employment opportunities for individuals with intellectual or developmental disabilities or other individuals with significant disabilities in competitive integrated employment;
- b. The use of certificate program carried act under section 14(c) of the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) for the employment of individuals with intellectual or developmental disabilities or other individuals with significant disabilities; and
- c. Ways to improve oversight of the use of such certificates.
- d. Integrated employment refers to jobs held by people with disabilities in workplace settings where the majority of persons employed are not persons with disabilities. In these jobs, the individuals with disabilities earn wages consistent with wages paid workers without disabilities in the community performing the same or similar work, earn at least minimum wage and are paid directly by the employer.

Oversight Committee

a. Accountability and / or Performance IU

Reviews monitoring and audit reports of both the organization and its Service Providers. If the Board has provided for the evaluation of its programs, the evaluations would also be properly brought before this committee. The committee may consider the elements of what is monitored as well as evaluated along with the results. Appropriate to this committee would also be reports relating to the organization's success in meeting federal and state performance standards.

b. Program Development

Reviews requests for proposals specification elements, new grants, hear contractor performance reports and make recommendations regarding new services to be implemented.

c. Training Provider/Training Programs

Review training provider applications, requests for proposals, and contracts for special segments of the population.

Employer Engagement Committee

- a. Research the needs of local employers with respect to hiring needs and skills gaps.
- b. Identify potential partners based on industry needs and standing employer relationships through existing programs, local workforce investment boards, Chambers of Commerce, economic development organizations, trade associations, and non-profits.
- c. Schedule meetings of employers interested in pursuing a partnership.
- d. Create a single-point of contact at the one-stops to facilitate the creation and cultivation of partnerships between the workforce system and the business community.
- e. Engage employers in program design, curriculum development, and work-based learning, for both adults and youth.
- f. Invite feedback and other support as the program develops, and build long-term relationships with employers.
- g. Maintain regular communications.

Policy and Planning Committee

- a. Reviews the creation and development of employment statistics, labor market information and demand occupations for the local area.
- b. May set a wage rate applicable to occupations for which training will be offered, oversee job fairs and business services funded by the Board including fee for service, fund raising, retreats and planning.
- c. Reviews State and Local Policy
- d. Marketing

Oversees development and implementation of a marketing plan. This may encompass public relations, employer relations, and outreach to the community.

e. Public Relations

Approves public relations and marketing strategies. May approve, review or recommend the purchase of public relations services to the full Board. May review publications, press releases, annual reports and send spokespersons to other community business organizations to represent the Board.

ADDENDUM B POLICY ON MEETINGS VIA ELECTRONIC MEANS

PROCEDURES REGARDING MEETINGS AND CONFERENCING VIA ELECTRONIC MEANS

The Illinois Open Meetings Act as amended requires that all public meetings be held at specified times and places which are convenient and open to the public. It also requires that a quorum of members of a public body must be physically present at the location of an open meeting. According to the Act as amended, however, in some cases if an open meeting of a public body is held simultaneously at one of its offices, and one or more other locations in a public building, which may include other of its offices through an interactive video conference, and the public body provides public notice and public access as required under the Act for all locations, then members physically present in those locations all count towards determining a quorum. "Public building" means any building or portion thereof owned or leased by any public body. Included in the exceptions to the single open meeting location requirement are local workforce innovation areas with jurisdiction over a specific geographic area of more than 4,500 square miles [5 ILCS 120/7(d)], as long as they adopt specific procedural rules.

The Board believes it is in the best interest of its members, systems, and customers that the fullest participation and attendance in all meetings be achieved whenever possible. Furthermore, it recognizes that the use of electronic, audio or video conferencing for meeting attendance and voting requirements is permissible so long as the meeting is conducted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act. The Board in all of its regular and special, standing committee, and ad hoc committee meetings complies with and intends to comply with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act, as amended.

Therefore, the Board hereby adopts this policy, to be used when needed, to make use of the capabilities for conferencing by electronic means or any other type of audio or video conferencing for its meetings <u>or</u> any of the standing committee and ad hoc committee meetings as set forth and adopted according to the following rules as applicable:

- A. All pertinent provisions of the Open Meetings Act must be complied with, including specifically the proper notice of any regular or special meeting, the proper record keeping or minutes of each meeting, the appropriate agenda preparation for each meeting, which in addition shall be posted along with the notice of the meeting; and, in particular, any use of closed sessions shall be in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
- B. That sufficient security and identification procedures are employed, either at the outset of any meeting or at any time during the meeting as appropriate, to ensure that any and all members attending for discussion or voting purposes are in fact authorized members with the right to speak and vote.
- C. Pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, the requirement in 5 ILCS 120/7(a) that a quorum of members of the Board MUST be physically present at the location of the meeting shall NOT apply because 5 ILCS 120/7(d) of the Act specifically excepts local workforce innovation areas of the specified size from such requirements, and authorizes them to permit attendance by other means in accordance with procedural rules such as those contained herein. Specifically, Board and committee members may attend by video and/or audio conferencing or by other electronic means for quorum and voting purposes in accordance with these provisions.

- D. All Board and committee members attending meetings by electronic conferencing shall be entitled to vote as if they were personally and physically present at the meeting site so long as a quorum is, in total, present and accounted for, but their votes shall be recorded by the Secretary as done by electronic attendance.
- E. A Board or committee member who attends a meeting by electronic, video or audio conference must provide notice to the recording Secretary at least 24 hours prior to the meeting unless such advance notice is impracticable.
- F. A member may attend a Board or committee meeting through electronic/video/audio conferencing if, in the opinion of the member, his or her physical presence at the meeting is unable to be obtained or is inconvenient for any reason including, but not limited to reasons such as personal schedule or time conflicts, inclement weather, length of required travel time, the high cost of such travel, or vehicle, fuel or time involved.
- G. As soon as it becomes apparent to the Secretary that a meeting will include electronic/audio/video conferencing, all subsequent notices of the meeting shall indicate that one or more members will or may be attending by such means. In the event that the notice of the meeting has already been disseminated and posted, a follow-up notice indicating the above shall be placed as soon as possible. In the event any news media have filed the annual request for notice of meetings, they shall receive an updated notice in the same manner as given to all members of the Board and its committees.
- H. The meeting minutes shall include, but need not be limited to: i) the date, time and place of the meeting; ii) the members who were either present or absent from the meeting and whether those members in attendance were physically present or present by audio conference, video conference or by other electronic means; and iii) a summary of discussion on all matters proposed, deliberated, or decided, and iv) a record of any votes taken.
- I. The location of the meeting included on the notice shall be equipped with a suitable transmission system (e.g., a speakerphone) in order that the public audience, the members in attendance and any staff in attendance will be able to hear any input, vote or discussion of the conference and that the member attending by electronic means shall have a similar capability of hearing and participating in such input, vote or discussion.
- J. As the Board or its committees begin each new matter of business, the chair will check with all remote location(s) where members are to ensure that each such connection is active and not muted.
- K. When a motion is made, and seconded, and discussion regarding the motion begins, the chair will check that the connection with remote location(s) where members are present is active and not muted. Prior to closing discussion and taking any vote, the chair will ask all remote location(s) where member(s) is(are) present whether there are any additional comments, questions, or information to be added to the discussion.
- L. All decisions will be made using majority rule except when a higher vote is required. There will be no muting of any connections with remote location(s) where members are present at any time. There will be no sidebar discussions.

- M. No later than 48 hours before a scheduled meeting of the Board or its committees, each system will advise the Open Meetings Act designee regarding all of the documents that have been posted for any such meeting, and any and all locations where the documents have been posted.
- N. The procedures outlined above shall also apply to each Board and its committee members.